
 Regular Meeting AGENDA, May 1, 2024 | Page 1 of 3 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, May 1, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS CITY ADMINISTRATION 

Ward 1 Patricia Benetis Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert 
Mayor David Hanson

I. Call to Order 
II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer

III. Roll Call
IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda
V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only)
VII. Reports

a. Mayor
b. Council Members
c. Finance Director
d. Law Director
e. City Manager

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes
Emergency Meeting Minutes March 28, 2024
Regular Meeting Minutes April 17, 2024

IX. Public Hearings
ORDINANCE 2024-19       Sponsors: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE A 2024 FORD F-550 FROM SARCHIONE FORD 
LINCOLN AND UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE TRUCK FROM QUALITY TRUCK 
BODYFOR USE BY THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

ORDINANCE 2024-20                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.01(e) OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES
RELATING TO THE TIME REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC NOTICE OF SPECIAL COUNCIL
MEETINGS



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, May 1, 2024 | Page 2 of 3 

ORDINANCE 2024-21                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.03(m) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS AT EMERGENCY 
COUNCIL MEETINGS  

X. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-19       Sponsors: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE A 2024 FORD F-550 FROM SARCHIONE FORD 
LINCOLN AND UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE TRUCK FROM QUALITY TRUCK 
BODYFOR USE BY THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

ORDINANCE 2024-20                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.01(e) OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 
RELATING TO THE TIME REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC NOTICE OF SPECIAL COUNCIL 
MEETINGS  

ORDINANCE 2024-21                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.03(m) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS AT EMERGENCY 
COUNCIL MEETINGS  

XI. New Business
ORDINANCE 2024-24                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 

ORDINANCE 2024-25                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE 
ORDER TO ACLARA TECHNOLOGIES LLC  FOR THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE FEE 
FOR SOFTWARE THAT BENEFITS THE UTILITY DEPARTMENTS

ORDINANCE 2024-26                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER TO 
ACLARA TECHNOLOGIES LLC  FOR THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE FEE FOR 
SOFTWARE THAT BENEFITS THE UTILITY DEPARTMENTS

ORDINANCE 2024-27                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON THE 
ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS AND/OR CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY FOR 
ANY BUILDING, STRUCTURE, USE, OR CHANGE OF USE THAT WOULD ENABLE 
THE CULTIVATION, PROCESSING OR RETAIL SALE OF RECREATIONAL 
MARIJUANA 



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, May 1, 2024 | Page 3 of 3 

MOTION   Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Persino 
A Motion authorizing the City Manager to donate $500.00 to the Eagle Creek 
Conservation Club to go towards stocking the community pond for the 2024 Annual 
Youth Fishing Derby to be held on June 2nd, 2024. 

XII. Public Comments
XIII. Closing Remarks

a. Mayor
b. Council Members
c. Finance Director
d. Law Director
e. City Manager

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary)
XV. Adjournment



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 1 of 4 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
EMERGENCY MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, March 28, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  City Clerk Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

I. Call to Order 
Mayor Hanson called the meeting to order at approximately 6:10 pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Mayor asked for the roll to called. Mr. Novotny called the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Persino, 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert. 
Council Absent: none 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager Novotny, Law Director Limbian. 
Staff Absent: Clerk Acomb. 

IV. New Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-15  Sponsors: Councilperson Stimpert and Rufener 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH ASSURED PARTNERS THROUGH THE OHIO 
PLAN FOR THE CITY’S PROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE RENEWAL 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Ms. Persino. 

Mr. Novotny explained this the liability renewal that happens every year. Mr. 
Rufener stated that it is due by April 1.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
 
 
 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 2 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-16  Sponsors: Councilperson Rufener and Stimpert 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO PAY 
ASSESSMENT FEE TO OHIO MUNICIPAL JOINT SELF-INSURANCE POOL FOR 
LIABILITY INSURANCE RUN-OUT COVERAGE 

Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Axiotis pointed out that the ordinance number printed on the agenda is 
misprinted as 2023-16. Mr. Novotny stated that the ordinance number is correct 
on the ordinance itself as 2024-16. Mr. Rufener asked for an explanation. Mr. 
Novotny explained that due to the insurance pool that the Village was in during 
the last term, that pool dissolved, and the pool took out an insurance policy to 
cover all outstanding liabilities, current and future. The cost of this insurance 
plan is being spread across all members of the pool. The assessment is based on 
year’s in the pool, current amount of liabilities outstanding, and total amount of 
liabilities that had been incurred over the life of the previous pool policy.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 

 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
MOTION      Sponsor: Councilperson Stimpert 
A motion to direct the city manager to take the necessary steps to research the best 
options and recommend to Council a new healthcare benefits insurance policy for the 
employees of the Village of Newton Falls. 

Mayor Hanson read the motion. Moved by: Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
Mr. Limbian was provided with an address upon his request. He explained that 
the motion should have a second councilperson as a sponsor. He further 
explained that it would be proper to add a second sponsor tonight. He further 
explained that Council should state for the record the nature of the emergency 
regarding this situation. Her further explained that if the interim city manager 
has current information at his disposal, then he should provide that information 
and council might sponsor and co-sponsor a motion to initiate that due to the 
emergency time constraints that have occurred due to the lack of appropriate 
diligence that has occurred in the last year. He stated that a second emergency 
meeting would not be necessary and everything related to this situation can be 
accomplished tonight. He advised that two motions tonight could authorize the 
city manager to act appropriately. He further advised in response to a question 
from Ms. Stimpert that a co-sponsor for the this motion to be established first 
and then have a second motion if Council pleases. 
 
Mr. Axiotis offered to co-sponsor the main motion. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-
yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. Mr. Axiotis was added as a second 
sponsor. 

 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Rufener asked for the next steps. Mr. Limbian advised the Mr. Novotny should 
explain the nature of the emergency and what he has learned that could move the Village 
forward.  
 
Mr. Novotny asked for recess to retrieve the appropriate information from his office. Mr. 
Rufener made a motion to take a 5-minute recess. Mr. Axiotis asked for an explanation 
regarding the nature of the emergency. Mr. Novotny advised that the Village is up 
against specific dates that pose critical timelines and deadlines. Mr. Rufener restated his 
motion to take a 5-minute recess. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert.  
 No discussion.  
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. A 5-minute recess began at 6:27 pm.  
 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to return from the recess. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting resumed at 6:37 pm.  
 
Mr. Novotny provided a document that compares the pertinent information of the 
current health plan and the comparison to Medical Mutual’s MMO Balanced Solutions, 
an underwritten insurance plan. He stated that the current plan is self-funded and 
includes an HRA, deductibles, and stop-gap insurance once a certain level is reached. He 
summarized that the deductibles are comparable and continued to summarize the 
remaining comparisons as Council followed along (enclosed).  He stated that dental, 
vision, and orthodontics will continue to be self-pay through the Village and are not 
relevant to this discussion. For the current plan, per month, the total premium is 
$65,790.36. The proposed plan will have a monthly premium will be $32,187.76. The 
savings will be $33,602.60 per month. The total estimated annual premium will be an 
annual total of $789,484.32 for the current plan versus $386,253.12 for the proposed 
plan. This is an annual savings to the Village of $403,231.20. He explained the HRA 
section.  The current plan bears a total cost to the Village of $1,030,984.32 vs. 
$793,353.12 for the proposed plan. A significant savings can be realized with the 
proposed plan. He further explained the carrier estimates the HRA would be used at 
70%. He stated that a younger workforce is very healthy compared to a few years ago, 
which will be cheaper for the Village than in past years. Mr. Novotny stated that the 
proposed plan is similar to what was previously held several years ago and would be in 
effect from May 1, 2024 – May 1, 2025. He stated that the current plan runs from 
January to January; but his research indicates that a mid-year renews benefits all 
parties. The insurance carriers negotiate far less with clients in January because there 
are so many renewals that come due. The mid-year renewals present an opportunity for 
the carriers to carefully consider different factors and negotiate more freely. Mr. Novotny 
further explained that there are many issues with the current insurance carrier. EOBs 
aren’t being received, employees are being threatened by the carrier with the collection 
process because the administration hasn’t handled the payment process in a timely 
manner. He gave several examples of debit cards being denied. He stated belief that the 
Village must act now to start on May 1 or the whole process begins all over again, 
including employee surveys and the loss of another 60 days to finish that renewal 
process. Further, any additional payments made on the current plan will significantly cut 
any savings to the Village once a new plan is signed into place. Mr. Rufener asked for 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 4 of 4 
 

clarification that every month that passes will cost an additional $33,000. Mr. Novotny 
stated belief that this is an emergency situation to (1) maximize the savings and 
protection of public money and (2) provide the employees with a quality policy that is 
believed to not be plagued with the administrative problems of the current policy. He 
further stated that employees will be transferred to the new policy and will take the 
current status of their deductible with them. Ms. Stimpert stated that she and Mr. 
Novotny have been discussing the situation. She stated belief that this direction is the 
best for the Village and the employees as it provides better coverage for less money. She 
agreed that it is an emergency and warrants action.  
 
Mr. Limbian stated that a second motion can be made to direct the city manager to 
implement a new agreement. Mr. Axiotis reminded Council that a meeting is to be held 
next Wednesday where this could be handled. Mr. Novotny stated belief that waiting for 
that meeting would unnecessarily delay the processing of a new agreement and violate 
the necessary deadlines to get this plan started and the deadline to add something to the 
regular meeting agenda has already passed. Mr. Axiotis conceded; but expressed concern 
with this rushed approach. Mr. Novotny stated that an ordinance must be written and an 
emergency meeting on April 1 will be necessary to pass that legislation effectively. He 
stressed that time is of the essence. Mr. Axiotis agreed that another emergency meeting 
would be best to properly pass a properly written ordinance. Mr. Rufener asked if that 
would be possible. Mr. Novotny said it would be no problem. Mr. Axiotis recommended 
voting on the main motion. Ms. Stimpert asked if waiting until April 1 will hurt the 
Village. Mr. Novotny said action taken on April 1 would be sufficient; but April 3 is not 
available to Council.  
 
Mayor Hanson read the motion again and called for a motion to pass it. Moved by Mr. 
Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. 

V. Adjournment 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. 
Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:59 pm. 

APPROVED: 
              
       _________________________________________________ 

      David Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 
 
NOTE: After the meeting adjourned, Mr. Limbian determined that this meeting was not compliant with the 
Newton Falls Charter due to the lack of opportunity for the public to engage in Public Comments. That 
advice means that the votes taken by Council at this meeting were legally invalid. Therefore, at the advice of 
Mr. Limbian, Ms. Stimpert, Vice President of Council called an emergency meeting to be scheduled April 1, 
2024 for the purpose of properly passing emergency legislation with opportunities for public comments.  



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 1 of 4 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, April 17, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

I. Call to Order 
Vice President of Council Stimpert called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to call the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Persino, 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert. 
Council Absent: Mayor Hanson 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager Novotny, Clerk Acomb, Finance Director Housley, 
Law Director Limbian. 
Staff Absent: None. 

IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to excuse Mayor Hanson from the meeting due to illness. 
Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. 

V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 
Mr. Housley – Presentation of the Finance Department 2023 Year-End Report 

Mr. Housley summarized from a prepared statement/report. (Enclosed). Mr. 
Housley requested a future time for presentations on the Enterprise Fund and 
the associated notes. No questions were asked by Council. Council excused Mr. 
Housley from the meeting.  

 
VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 

No public comments. 
 

VII. Reports 
a. Mayor  



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 2 of 4 
 

b. Council Members 
i. Ward 1 – No report. 

ii. Ward 2 – He attended the solar eclipse event and it was great! 
iii. Ward 3 – April 22 is Clean Up Day. She stated that the Senior Pantry is 

running low and encouraged all to donate. 
iv. Ward 4 – No report. 
v. At-Large – A Fire Board meeting was last night, and the First Street 

property is still for sale. They are looking for creative ways to ensure 
proper coverage of the joint district given low staffing levels.  

c. Finance Director – No report. 
d. Law Director – He is now working at the prosecutor and the transition has been 

challenging. He is surprised by the level of domestic violence and child abuse 
cases; but they are being taken seriously. 

e. Interim City Manager – Mr. Novotny read a prepared report (Enclosed). Also, 
new handrails have been installed on the stairs in Council Chambers. An official 
flag retirement ceremony will be held on May 25.  

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Mr. Rufener asked Mr. Limbian to comment on the meeting minutes for March 28, 2024 
and the subsequent meeting on April 1, 2024. He supports that a be note made at the end 
of the meeting minutes to explain the situation with the invalidated votes. It was 
recommend that action take on those minutes wait until those minutes’ time in the 
agenda. 
 
Special Meeting Minutes February 25, 2024 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to approve the Special Meeting Minutes of February 25, 
2024. Moved by Mr. Rufener. He noted that there is typo in the agenda. The meeting 
minutes are actually for January 25, 2024. The submitted meeting minutes are 
accurately titled. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 
 No discussion 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The minutes were approved. 
 
Emergency Meeting Minutes March 28, 2024 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to approve the Emergency Meeting Minutes March 28, 
2024. Mr. Rufener made a motion to table the minutes until the next meeting to allow 
for the law director to assist the clerk to write a statement on the minutes that explains 
the situation with the invalidated votes. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The minutes were tabled until the next regular 
meeting. 
 
Emergency Meeting Minutes April 1, 2024 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to approve the Emergency Meeting Minutes April 1, 
2024. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The minutes were approved. 



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
Regular Meeting Minutes April 3, 2024 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes April 3, 2024. 
Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The minutes were approved. 
 

IX. Public Hearings 
ORDINANCE 2024-11                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
No public comments. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-14                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS EXPAND 
THE DUTIES OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO INCLUDE THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She stated that the Charter states that the Clerk of Council and the City Clerk are 
supposed to be the same person. She urged Council to combine the positions to comply 
with the Charter.  
 
ORDINANCE 2024-18                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT OBSOLETE AND 
NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND TO DISPOSE OF 
SAID VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT 
No public records 
 

X. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-14                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS EXPAND 
THE DUTIES OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO INCLUDE THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She called for a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 

 

 



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 4 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-11                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She called for a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-18                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT OBSOLETE AND 
NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND TO DISPOSE OF 
SAID VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She called for a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 

XI. New Business 

             ORDINANCE 2024-19       Sponsors: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO An 
AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE A 2024 FORD F-550 FROM SARCHIONE FORD 
LINCOLN AND UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE TRUCK FROM QUALITY TRUCK 
BODY FOR USE BY THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She called for a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Axiotis asked Mr. Novotny to present his rationale for the request. This truck 
will replace the 1993 International listed on the disposal list. He stated repair 
history on that truck shows a pattern of expensive repairs, most recently nearly 
$10,000. It will take two months to receive the new truck. Mr. Rufner stated that 
the Superintendents are doing a great job taking care of the equipment and 
forecasting replacements. This was planned out for the budget well in advance. 
The recommendation to replace comes when the expense for maintenance and 
upkeep outweighs its value. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 

 
ORDINANCE 2024-20                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.01(e) OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 
RELATING TO THE TIME REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC NOTICE OF SPECIAL COUNCIL 
MEETINGS  
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She called for a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 5 of 4 
 

Mr. Rufener explained this ordinance as “housekeeping” item whereas the 
Charter and the Administrative Code does not match. This ensures consistency 
and gives deference to the Charter. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 

 
ORDINANCE 2024-21                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.03(m) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS AT EMERGENCY 
COUNCIL MEETINGS  
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She called for a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Rufener explained that this ordinance will add public comments to the 
agenda template for emergency meetings ensuring consistency between the 
Charter and the Administrative Code. This discrepancy caused the problem with 
March 28, 2024 Emergency Meeting.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-22      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Benetis, Persino 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT 
THE PROPOSAL OF OHM ADVISORS FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 
NEWTON FALLS 2024 PAVING PROGRAM 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She made a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 

Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Novotny to speak to the emergency. He explained that 
the grant funding was received last year for this project and this portion of the 
project should have been approved in November or December, 2023 and was 
delayed when the 2024 Budget approval was delayed. This is for design work so 
that the funding isn’t lost. The project needs to be started by July 1, 2024. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 
 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title a second time. She made a 
motion to adopt the ordinance. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-23      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Benetis, Persino 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT 
THE PROPOSAL OF POLLARD LAND SERVICES FOR EMERGENCY SEWER 
REPLACEMENT INSTALLATION SERVICES FOR WEST RIVER ROAD 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title. She made a motion to 
adopt the ordinance. Seconded by Ms. Persino. 

A tornado warning was heard causing a brief interruption. Mr. Rufener asked Mr. 
Novotny to explain. Mr. Novotny explained the location and stated that an old 6-



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 6 of 4 
 

inch line needs to be replaced with a new 8-inch line. Recently, a suspected 
collapse has occurred and has caused flooding in the basements of residents. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 

 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to read the ordinance by title a second time. She made a 
motion to adopt the ordinance. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 

XII. Public Comments 

A member of the public advised Council to seek shelter as announced by 27 News. 

Mr. Rufener made a motion to recess due to the tornado sirens. Seconded by Ms. 
Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. A recess began at 6:45 pm. Council and the public left Council Chambers to 
seek shelter 
 
Council and the public re-entered Council Chambers at 7:02 pm. Mr. Axiotis made a 
motion to resume the meeting. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The meeting resumed at 7:03 pm. 
 
Denny Cottrill – 16 Grant Street 
He is a member of the planning and zoning commission. He spoke about concerns with 
marijuana facilities coming to Newton Falls. He urged Council to act and prevent this 
from happening as soon as possible.  
 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She thanked the community for the turnout at the solar eclipse. She knows that people 
from other states were in the community with their families. She encouraged Council to 
continue to be inquisitive and appreciates their due diligence on Village matters.  
 
Rick Kerlin – 1009 Woodglen 
He stated the law director permitted Heritage Accord to have the lease back and 
wondered when the legislature decided that or discussed it with Council. He stated belief 
that Heritage Accord should start paying their insurance. When will that happen? He 
expressed disappointment in Council for allegedly discussing this situation round-robin. 
He wished to know why the Village is carrying insurance for the community center and 
wished, again, to know who gave the law director the authority to act on the lease. 
 

XIII. Closing Remarks 
a. Council Members 

i. Ward 1 – No remarks. 



 

 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 7 of 4 
 

ii. Ward 2 – He spoke about the DHSS. He stated that it was an advisory 
committee and was no longer necessary. He spoke with a few petitioners 
who signed the referendum. He alleged that some of them stated that they 
were told they were signing a petition to save the Community Center, 
which, if true, was dishonest on the part of the circulator. Council, 
regardless, gets to decide if it wants to spend money on the community 
center.  

iii. Ward 3 – No remarks. 
iv. Ward 4 – No remarks. 

b. Law Director – No remarks. 
c. City Manager – No remarks 

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to enter executive session. No motion was made. 
 

XV. Adjournment 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. 
Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:11 pm. 

 

APPROVED: 
              
        ________________________________________ 
                                David Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 
 



 

April 17, 2024 
Honorable Mayor David Hanson and Council, 
 
RE: Executive Summary, 2023 Regulatory Basis Financial Statements – All Governmental Funds 
 
Ohio law (ORC 117.38) requires the Village to file an annual financial report with the Auditor of State by 
60 days following fiscal year-end. This report was filed on Wednesday, February 28th. 

The following discussion is on our Combined Statement of Receipts, Disbursements, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types (page 1). 

The General “Governmental” activity on this Regulatory Basis report represents more than just the 
General Fund (100) activity. It’s a compilation of 9 Funds 100, 101, 216, 221, 510, 706, 707, 709, 711 
identified on the Statement of Cash position. (Note, fund 221 is the Income tax fund). 

Total General Fund Cash receipts increased $664,423 (28%). Municipal Income Tax, Intergovernmental 
Revenue and Earning on investments represent $492,445 of this increase or 74%.  

To break this down, the General fund income taxes increased $135,190, which could be due to a number 
of things, including our delinquent filer letter campaigns, utility newsletters, and taxpayer informational 
content (posted to our webpage). It’s too early to gauge if this is the beginning of a trend. 

Intergovernmental revenue increased $101,476 due to Grants received for Gas Station Cleanup and 
Kayak/Canoe Launch.  Earnings on investments increased $255,779 due primarily to the U.S. Federal 
Reserve implementation of interest rate hikes.    

 

The Charges for Services are primarily Refuse Consumer Charges.  Fines, Licenses & Permits are 
primarily Court collections. 

2023 2022 GF
General General Change

Cash Receipts
Property and Other Local Taxes 10% 297,816$        285,535$        12,281$          
Municipal Income Tax 38% 1,156,901       1,021,711       135,190$        
Intergovernmental 7% 225,804          124,328          101,476$        
Charges for Services 13% 405,186          366,238          38,948$          
Fines, Licenses and Permits 19% 582,143          541,540          40,603$          
Earnings on Investments 7% 213,783          (41,996)          255,779$        
Miscellaneous 5% 161,436          81,290           80,146$          

Total Cash Receipts 3,043,069       2,378,646       664,423          
28%



Total Cash Disbursements were $2,467,301. Of these total disbursements, Fund 100 “General Fund” 
expenditures represented (87%) or $2,137,255. Of this amount, Police, Mayor, Council, Administration 
and the Munit Court made up 77%. The changes by department are summarized below: 

 

The above 2023 General Fund (fund 100 on the SOC) increase in Police expenditures of $183,313 was 
due primarily to 2022 police expenditures reclassified to the ARPA of $236,211.   

The Special Revenue (200 series on the SOC), excluding those funds mentioned in the General 
Governmental discussion (above) and adding funds 504, 708 and 710 is primarily made up of  the Street 
Construction fund (201) and Court Activities Funds (including 222 and 223) funds.  

The Capital Projects (400 series on the SOC) is primarily the capital improvement fund (400) principal 
and interest related activity.      

Sincerely, 

Sean M. Housley, CPA 
Finance Director, Village of Newton Falls 

To Summarize the General Fund (100 only) Expenditures:
2023 2022 GF

Department: General (100) 2023 General (100) Change
Police & Police Support 710,853        33% 527,539          183,313      
Fire 75,228          4% 72,962           2,266         
Zoning 67,709          3% 84,557           (16,849)      
Mayor, Council, Administration 302,325        14% 367,979          (65,654)      
Muni Court 639,324        30% 623,264          16,060        
Buildings & Grounds 224,545        11% 207,697          16,848        
Transfers, Advances, Other 117,271        5% (37,704)          154,976      

2,137,255      100% 1,846,295       290,960      



 

April 16, 2024 
 
  The letter was drafted and sent to Faces Lounge giving the city’s support of their fundraiser that they 
presented at the last council meeting. 
  
  

The eclipse event went well with a good turnout and a beautiful day for the event.  There were a lot of 
people uptown as well and a good number of people around the city park for the event.  There were no issues 
with the road closure or reopening after the event. 
 
  

The Maintenance Department had an employee turn in his two-week notice.  His last day will be April 
19th.  Have worked with Rich Coss & Justin Frendak to get a job posting together and publicized.  There is a full 
time Laborer position open in the Maintenance Department applications can be picked up at city hall.  The 
Maintenance Department will not be hiring any part time summer help this year.   
 
  

The Scott Street Project is progressing.  The weather has not been very cooperative, but they are 
making progress.  With ball season here everyone is going to have to be patient with parking in and around 
the ball fields.  We are making sure that all areas available for parking will be usable.  The area by the big 
softball field where the contractor has their area fenced in and where the large piles of gravel stacked is off 
limits to park.  Thie is for safety!  The contractor works 10-14 hours a day 4 days a week and during their work 
hours there in constantly heavy equipment and heavy trucks entering and exiting this area.  This is a huge 
project for the city as well as the township and we all will have to work through and be patient with the 
inconveniences that come with it.  It is for one summer season only.   
 
  

Friday night the Electric Department was out all night and most of the day Saturday due to the storms 
that passed through the area.  They had a total of 6 separate outages effecting 224 total customers that they 
had to make repairs and restore power.  They worked non stop through the night to restore the power.  Great 
job guys.   
 
  

Congratulations to Matt Evans & Larry Batovsky on completing their lineman training.  They are now 
both Journeyman Lineman. 
 
 
   
 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

Michael A. Novotny 

City Manager Report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

612 West Broad St. Newton Falls, Ohio 44444 Phone: 330-872-0806   Fax: 330-872-0544 



 
 

Finally, we had a meeting with owner and project manager for Dunkin Donuts on April 16th.  The 
utilities were discussed as was the annexation.  They are in the process of getting their final plans finished up 
and approved and will then be applying for permits.  The annexation field work should be done this week and 
within a short period of time will be ready to submit to the county.  We should be seeing construction started 
in the very near future. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely,         
 

Michael A. Novotny            
   
Michael A. Novotny        
Interim City Manager         
Village of Newton Falls 

     



 
 

   
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO An 
AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE A 2024 FORD F-550 FROM SARCHIONE FORD 

LINCOLN AND UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE TRUCK FROM QUALITY TRUCK 
BODYFOR USE BY THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, in order to properly serve the Village residents and property owners, 
the Maintenance Department desires to purchase a new dump truck to replace a 27-year-
old dump truck that is currently serving as the Department's primary vehicle; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Maintenance Department Supervisor and Interim City Manager 
investigated options for purchasing a new upfitted truck; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 9.17, formal advertisement 
and bidding are not required if a purchase is for less than $75,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council desires to take advantage of the quote provided by 
Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio because the price of the truck is less than 
$75,000 and also less than the price for a similar truck under the State’s Cooperative 
Purchasing Program and also has been determined by the Interim City Manager to be 
the most beneficial price on the purchase of a new 2024 Ford F-550 truck; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council intends to also upfit the new 2024 Ford F-550 truck with 
a Stainless-Steel dump bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment through 
Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, Ohio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council intends to finance the purchase of the new 2024 Ford  
F-550 Truck with all upfitted equipment through Ford Credit Municipal Finance for a term of 
5 years. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council has approved these expenditures in the Village’s 2024 
Budget 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That Council hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City 

Manager to enter into an agreement to purchase a new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from 
Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio for $72,730.00 as set forth in the attached 
quotation; 

 
 



 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19 
PAGE TWO 
 
  SECTION 2.  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City 
Manager to enter into an agreement to have the same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from 
Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow 
system, salt spreader, and other equipment by Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, as  
set forth in the attached quotations, for a separate and total amount of $59,998.00, 
pursuant to the State of Ohio Department of Transportation specifications. 
 
   SECTION 3.  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Ford Credit Municipal Financing to have the 
same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted 
with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment by 
Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, financed for a term of 5 years as set forth in the 
attached quotation, with an annual payment of $31,376.39 
 
 SECTION 4.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 
by law. 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
           Attest:     _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  



Ford Motor Credit Company ("FMCC") is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in connection with a proposed arm's 
length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours. FMCC 
is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended to be and 
should not be construed as "advice" within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the municipal advisor rules of the SEC. FMCC is 
not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

Financing Quote # 103562

March 26, 2024

Municipality: City of Newton Falls
Dealer: Sarchione Ford of Alliance

          
Ford Credit Municipal Finance is pleased to provide the following quote for your consideration. 
Expiration Date: 5/25/2024

VEHICLE INFORMATION

Description Unit Price
 Truck with Dump body, Plow & Spreader $132,728.00

COST INFORMATION

Total Asset Cost Underwriting Fee Amount Financed
$132,728.00 $545.00 $133,273.00

FINANCING OPTIONS

Number of Payments Payment Timing Rate Payment Amount
4 Annual 8.89% $37,687.50
5 Annual 8.89% $31,376.39

This quote was prepared assuming the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section 
103 of the IRS Code and is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance.  Financing is subject to credit review.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quote.  If you have any questions, need additional options, or would like to proceed with 
the application process, please contact by using the information below.  

Sincerely,

Janet Doty

Janet Doty
Marketing Coordinator
jdoty@ford.com
1-800-241-4199, press 1

1 American Road, MD 7500
Dearborn, Michigan 48126
1-800-241-4199, press 1























VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-20  
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.01(e) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE TIME REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC NOTICE OF 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 
WHEREAS, Council desires to amend Sections 121.01(e) of the Codified Ordinances 
relating to the time required for public notice of Special Council Meetings in order to 
make the language of this section conform to Article III, Section 7. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
of the Charter.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, hereby 
ordains:  
 
SECTION 1. That Sections 121.01(e) of the Village Administrative Code is hereby 
amended as set forth in the attachment hereto that is incorporated herein by reference.  
 
SECTION 2. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
SECTION 3. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted by 
law.  
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ______ DAY OF _______, 2024. 
 

 
________________________________  
David Hanson, Mayor 
 

Attest:                 ________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

Approved as to Legal Form.   _______________________________ 
Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2024 – 20  Exhibit A  Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
121.01 MEETINGS. 
  (e)   Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Mayor, Vice-President 
of Council or any two members of Council. There shall be given at least twenty-four 
seventy-two hours notice in writing of such special meeting, served personally on each 
member of Council or at his usual place of residence. Such notice shall state the subject 
or subjects to be considered at the meeting and no other subject shall be considered. 

 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

REFERENCE ONLY 
Newton Falls Charter 
Article III 
 

SECTION 7. SPECIAL MEETINGS. 
   The Mayor, Vice President of Council or any two members of Council may call special 
meetings. There shall be given at least seventy-two hours notice in writing of such special 
meeting, served personally on each member of Council or at his usual place of residence. 
The specific purpose stated by the notification can only be considered at such meeting. 
(Amended November 4, 2003) 

 
 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-21  
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.03(m) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS AT 

EMERGENCY COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 
WHEREAS, Council desires to amend Sections 121.03(m) of the Codified Ordinances 
relating to the order of business for emergency meetings to make the language of this 
section conform to ARTICLE III, SECTION 25. PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS 
paragraph c. of the Newton Falls Charter.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, hereby 
ordains:  
 
SECTION 1. That Sections 121.03(m) of the Village Administrative Code is hereby 
amended as set forth in the attachment hereto that is incorporated herein by reference.  
 
SECTION 2. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
SECTION 3. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted by 
law.  
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _________, 2024. 
 

 
________________________________  
David Hanson, Mayor 
 

Attest:                 ________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

Approved as to Legal Form.   _______________________________ 
Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2024 – 20   Exhibit A  Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
121.03 MEETINGS. 

   (m)   Order of Business for Emergency Meetings. The agenda for each Emergency 
Council meeting shall include. 
 
       (1)   Call to Order 
      (2)   Pledge of Allegiance 
       (3)   Invocation or Moment of Silence 
       (4)   Roll Call 

(5)   Public Comments (limited to those items as identified on the agenda)   
       (6)   Unfinished/New Business (As identified in Emergency Meeting Agenda) 
       (7)   Motion to recess to Executive Session (if necessary) 

(8)   Public Comments (limited to those items as identified on the agenda)  
       (9)   Motion to adjourn 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

REFERENCE 
Newton Falls Charter 
Article III 
 

SECTION 25. PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS. 
 

c. Emergency Council Meetings. At Emergency Council Meetings, prior to the time 
Council votes on any agenda item, members of the public in attendance shall have  
up to three minutes for Public Comments on any items on the agenda. 
(Added November 8, 2022.) 

 
 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-24 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 

OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
 

 WHEREAS, as a result of certain occurrences, information, and expenditures, 
amendments to the Year 2024 Appropriations and transfers of items already 
appropriated for the Year 2024 are desired and required; and 
  

WHEREAS, this Ordinance incorporates funding sources and/or expenditures 
that originated after the most recent Certificate of Resources was issued; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the appropriation amendments authorizes the Certificate of 
Resources to be filed with the Trumbull County Auditor. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the Exhibit attached hereto hereby amends the current 
appropriations for fiscal year 2024. Any funds not listed in this exhibit shall remain intact 
as previously listed and appropriated. 
 

SECTION 2. That the Village Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw 
warrants on the Village Treasury for payment of the foregoing appropriations upon 
receiving proper certification and vouchers thereof, and no salaries or wages shall be 
paid except to persons employed by authority of and in accordance with law or 
ordinance. 
 

SECTION 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open 
meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-24 
PAGE TWO 
 
 SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 
 
 
  
      _____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
 Attest:     _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

Approved as to Legal Form. 
      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  
  



2024 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 1  

2024 2024
2024 Appropriations: Current Proposed
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

204 PARK AND RECREATION/ Parks only
Personal Services Legal Level 1,870.00                 1,870.00            -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 12,107.68               12,107.68          -                      
204 Total: 13,977.68               13,977.68          -                      

204 PARK AND RECREATION / Community Center
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          1,000.00            1,000.00             
204 Total: -                          1,000.00            1,000.00             

501 WATER OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 529,010.65             529,010.65        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 905,137.88             918,179.88        13,042.00           
501 Total (Water Operating): 1,434,148.53         1,447,190.53     13,042.00           

501 WATER DISTRIBUTION
Personal Services Legal Level 504,967.37             504,967.37        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 448,905.49             461,947.49        13,042.00           
501 Total (Water Distribution): 953,872.86             966,914.86        13,042.00           

502 SEWER OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 600,945.03             600,945.03        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 3,476,528.52         3,502,612.52     26,084.00           
502 Total: 4,077,473.55         4,103,557.55     26,084.00           

503 ELECTRIC OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 724,601.22             724,601.22        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 5,475,230.24         5,501,314.24     26,084.00           
503 Total: 6,199,831.46         6,225,915.46     26,084.00           

514 UTILITY OFFICE
Personal Services Legal Level 158,857.89             158,857.89        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 102,017.03             180,269.03        78,252.00           
514 Total: 260,874.92             339,126.92        78,252.00           

Grand Total: 21,183,847.70 21,341,351.70 157,504.00

Appropriations Amendment 02



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO     
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-25 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis 
 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE 
ORDER TO ACLARA TECHNOLOGIES LLC  FOR THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 

FEE FOR SOFTWARE THAT BENEFITS THE UTILITY DEPARTMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Village Utility Billing, Water Distribution, and Electric Departments 
utilize software provided by Aclara Technologies LLC that manages the monitoring, 
billing, and collection functions of smart meters; and 

 WHEREAS, Aclara Technologies LLC submitted invoice number 23102130 RI to 
the Village on June 12, 2023 for the maintenance fees due for the billing period June, 
2023 – May, 2024 and the payment due for that invoice is significantly past due; and 

WHEREAS; the execution of a purchase order has been requested by the Finance 
Department and is necessary for the Finance Director to pay the aforementioned invoice.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Village of Newton 
Falls, Ohio: 

SECTION 1. The execution of purchase order 2024000335, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, to Aclara Technologies LLC for payment of invoice number 23102130, attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, in the amount of $39,125.42 is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2.  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to pay Aclara 
Technologies LLC a total amount of $39,125.42 as indicated in Exhibit B. 

SECTION 3. That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency 
measure necessary for the public peace, health, welfare, and safety of the residents of 
the Village because the invoice is past due and must be paid to ensure that the software 
continues to be available and usable without interruption to the function of the Utility 
Billing, Water Distribution, and Electric Departments. Therefore, this Ordinance shall 
take immediate effect upon its passage, pursuant to Newton Falls Charter Article III, 
Section 21. 

SECTION 4.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

SECTION 5. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-25 
PAGE TWO 

 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF __________________, 2024. 
  
 
 

     
 ________________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
  
  
 Attest:     ____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

 
Approved as to Legal Form. ____________________________________ 

      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 









VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-26 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER TO 
ACLARA TECHNOLOGIES LLC  FOR THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE FEE FOR 

SOFTWARE THAT BENEFITS THE UTILITY DEPARTMENTS. 

WHEREAS, the Village Utility Billing, Water Distribution, and Electric Departments 
utilize software provided by Aclara Technologies LLC that manages the monitoring, 
billing, and collection functions of smart meters; and 

WHEREAS, the software maintenance fees for the billing period June, 2024 – May, 
2025 are due to Aclara Technologies LLC; and 

WHEREAS; the execution of a purchase order has been requested by the Finance 
Department and is necessary for the Finance Director to pay the aforementioned invoice.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Village of Newton 
Falls, Ohio: 

SECTION 1. The execution of purchase order 2024000336, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, to Aclara Technologies LLC for payment of software maintenance fees for the 
billing period June, 2024 – May, 2025 in the amount of $39,125.42 is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2.  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to pay Aclara 
Technologies LLC a total amount of $39,125.42. 

SECTION 3. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF __________________, 2024. 

______________________________________ 
David Hanson, Mayor 

 Attest: ____________________________________  
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  

Approved as to Legal Form. ____________________________________ 
Jeff Limbian, Law Director 







 
 

   
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-27 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert, Axiotis 

 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON THE 

ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS AND/OR CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY 
FOR ANY BUILDING, STRUCTURE, USE, OR CHANGE OF USE THAT WOULD 

ENABLE THE CULTIVATION, PROCESSING OR RETAIL SALE OF 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA  

 
 WHEREAS, Village Council recognizes the need for the Village of Newton Falls to 
address the fact that on November 7, 2023, the electorate of the State of Ohio adopted 
Issue 2 enacting Ohio Revised Code Chapter 3780 wherein the cultivation, processing, 
sale, purchase, possession, home grow and use of recreational marijuana by adults over 
the age of 21 is permitted.   
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council recognizes that pursuant to the Ohio Constitution and 
Ohio Revised Code, municipalities have the power to enact planning and zoning laws that 
are for the health, safety, welfare, comfort and peace of the citizens of the municipality, 
including restricting areas used for businesses and trades. 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council recognizes that Chapter 3780 authorizes the legislative 
authority of a municipality to, by ordinance, prohibit or limit the number of Adult Use 
Cannabis Operators, which include cultivators, processors and dispensaries, permitted 
within the municipal corporation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That a moratorium on the issuance of building permits and/or 

certificates of occupancy for any building, structure, use or change of use that would enable 
the cultivation, processing or retail sale of recreational marijuana is hereby established from 
the effective date of this ordinance to allow the City Administration, Council and Planning 
and Zoning Commissions an opportunity to consider possible amendments to the Newton 
Falls Zoning Code subject to the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2024-27 
PAGE TWO 
 

SECTION 3.  This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare of 
the citizens of the Village of Newton Falls to continue the Property and Liability Insurance 
coverage for Village of Newton Falls operations. 
 

SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 
by law. 

 
 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  

 


	1regular meeting AGENDA 05-01-24 FINAL
	emergency meeting MINUTES 03-28-24
	1regular meeting MINUTES 04-17-24 DRAFT
	1regular meeting MINUTES 04-17-24 DRAFT
	24.04.17 FD Executive Summary to Council 2023 Governmental Funds
	City Manager Report 4-17

	2024-19 Ord Ford F-550 Dump Truck
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino
	SECTION 1.  That Council hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City
	Manager to enter into an agreement to purchase a new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from
	Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio for $72,730.00 as set forth in the attached
	quotation;
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19
	PAGE TWO
	SECTION 2.  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City
	Manager to enter into an agreement to have the same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from
	Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment by Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, as
	set forth in the attached quotations, for a separate and total amount of $59,998.00, pursuant to the State of Ohio Department of Transportation specifications.
	SECTION 3.  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City
	Manager to enter into an agreement with Ford Credit Municipal Financing to have the same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment...
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-19 Exh A Ford Credit Financing Quote Ford F-550 Street Department
	2024-19 Exh B Ford F-550 Sarchione Quote
	2024-19 Exh C Ford F-550 Quality Truck Quote
	2024-20 Ord Exh Public notice of Special Meetings
	2024-21 Ord Exh Emergency Meeting Agenda template
	2024-24 Ord Approp Amend 02
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-24
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Axiotis
	PAGE TWO
	_____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-24 Exh Aps Amend 02
	2024-25 Emerg Ord PO 335 Aclara 23-24
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form. ____________________________________

	2024-25 Exh PO 335, 39K ACLARA 23-24
	2024-26 Ord PO 335 Aclara 24-25
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form. ____________________________________

	2024-26 Exh PO 336, 39K ACLARA 24-25
	2024-27 Ord marijuana moratorium
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-27
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert, Axiotis
	USECTION 1.U  That a moratorium on the issuance of building permits and/or certificates of occupancy for any building, structure, use or change of use that would enable the cultivation, processing or retail sale of recreational marijuana is hereby est...
	USECTION 2.U  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such forma...
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________




